M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 01, 2002
9:13 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 23, Side A
SFC 02 # 23, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:13 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senat or Al an Austerman

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Al so Attendi ng: SENATOR BEN STEVENS; ALI SON ELCGEE, Departnent of
Adm ni stration; ELMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of
Health and Social Services; PAUL GROSSI, Director, Wrkers
Conmpensation Division, Department  of Labor and Workforce
Devel opnent

Attending via Teleconference: From Anchorage: LIEUTENANT JULIA
GRI MES, Al aska State Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety

SUMVARY | NFORVATI ON
SB 222- REQUI RE SLOW DRI VERS TO PULL OVER

The Conmittee adopted a conmttee substitute and noved the bill out
of Commttee.

SB 266- FI SHERY ENHANCEMENT LQANS

The Commttee heard public testinony, and reported the bill from
Committee.

SB 182- PRO RATA REDUCTI ONS | N BENEFI T PROGRAMS

SFC- 02 (1) 03/ 01/ 02



The Commttee heard public testinony, adopted a comittee
substitute as a working draft and held the bill in Cormmttee.

#SB222

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 222(TRA)
"An Act relating to certain notor vehicles that are required
toyield to following traffic.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

Co-Chair Donley stated the intent of this legislation is to
encourage slow traffic to conply with existing state regul ati ons
requiring any vehicle traveling below the speed limt to safely
pull off the road, where feasible, when followed by five or nove
vehicles. He inforned the Conmittee that the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities “has agreed to put up nore
si gnage” near the Canadi an border and other “critical places.to
informthe public about this legislation.” He communi cated there is
an acconpanying fiscal note for $30,000 to cover the costs of
proposed road signage.

Co-Chair Donley informed the Conmttee this |egislation wuld al so
increase the fine levels for the offense, and add two points to the
of fending driver’s |license record.

Co-Chair Donley noted that the Senate Transportation Conmttee
Substitute of this bill renoved | anguage from the original bil
that specified where signage woul d be pl aced.

Co-Chair Donley noted the Al aska State Troopers “exercise a | ot of
di scretion” when determning “when it is appropriate” to enforce
the regul ati on as bad weat her and poor road conditions could sl ow
drivers down; however, the legislation “would beef up” the
requi renment “to pull over.”

Senator Green asked what size the proposed acconpanying signhage
woul d be.

Co-Chair Donley stated there are specific regulations regarding
hi ghway si gnhage.

Senator Green inquired if the signage could be considered as
bi | | boar ds.

SFC- 02 (2) 03/ 01/ 02



Co- Chair Donl ey responded they would not.

Co-Chair Donley voiced appreciation for the Departnment of
Transportation and Public Facilities efforts in fornulizing this
| egi sl ation, and stressed the inportance of signage in educating
drivers, and of having “significant” penalties as a deterrent to
violating this statute.

Co-Chair Kelly cited his experience of watching frustrated drivers
taking risks to pass slower noving vehicles. He stated this
| egislation could help address the cause of the frustration;
thereby | owering the danger presented by the risk takers.

Senator Geen stated this legislation mght be expanded to
accomodat e ot her hi ghway si gnage.

LI EUTENANT JULIA GRIMES, Alaska State Troopers, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage to comrunicate that the proposed
commttee substitute addresses the departnment’s concerns. She
stressed that Alaska's roads are frustrating as there is [imted
opportunity for people to safely pull off the road to allow for
others to pass. She stated the proposed signage would serve as a
rem nder to drivers.

Senator Ward nade a notion to nove SB 222 (FIN) 22-LS0611\L out of
Comm ttee with acconpanyi ng Department of Transportation and Public
Facilities fiscal note of $30, 000.

There were no objections, and the bill MOVED from Conmittee.

At ease 9:26 AM/ 9:27 AM

#SB266

CS FOR SENATE BILL NO 266(RES)

"An Act authorizing the comm ssioner of comunity and econom c
devel opment to refinance and extend the term of a fishery
enhancenent | oan."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Committee.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS, sponsor of the bill, infornmed the Commttee
this bill would provide the Conmm ssioner of Departnment of Comunity

SFC- 02 (3) 03/ 01/ 02



and Econom ¢ Devel opnent the ability to refinance | oans nade by the
Fi sheri es Enhancenent Revol ving Loan Fund, and “extend the term of
a loan when justified.” He continued that the Departnent would be
required “to submt an annual report to the Legislature sunmari zi ng
the comm ssioner’s decisions during the prior calendar year to
approve or deny requests to extend |oans.”

Senat or Stevens stressed, “there is no forgiveness of principle or
interest allowed under this legislation, and all paynents are nade
directly to the loan fund.”

DAVE COBB, Business Manager for the Val dez Fi sheries Devel opnent
Association (VFDA) testified via teleconference from Val dez,
voi cing strong support for this bill; however, he expressed this is
“just one of many changes that nust be made in Alaska if the
comercial fishing industry is to survive.” He commented that the
hat chery program in Al aska has been successful, and that every
opportunity to make hatcheries nore efficient and nore econom cal
makes “good business sense.” He warned that the “conpetitive
playing field” for Al aska fisheries has changed dramatically, and
all industries nust adapt to survive in the “conpetitive globa
market.” He reiterated “this bill nakes good business sense and
wi || have no inpact on general fund dollars.”

SUE ASPLUND, Executive Director, Cordova District Fishernen s
United (CDFU), testified via teleconference from Cordova, and
detailed the positive econom c inpact hatcheries have in the Prince
W I Iliam Sound area. She stressed that this bill would result in the
imedi ate ability of Hatcheries to produce nore fish, which “nmeans
nore fish into the nets of comrercial fishernmen as well as sport
fishernmen.” She asked the Commttee for their support of this bill

GREG W NEGAR, Director, D vision of Investnents, Departnent of
Conmuni ty and Economi ¢ Devel opnent, stated this bill would provide
aquacul ture associ ations an opportunity to refinance existing | oans
to take advantage of lower interest rates. He stated it is
inportant to note this legislation would not “adversely inpact” the
integrity of the Fisheries Enhancenent Revol ving Loan Fund, would
i nprove hatcheries financial picture, and would have no negative
i npact on the Departnent.

JON CARTER, Director, Douglas Island Pink and Chum Hat chery (D PAC
testified in support of this bill. He cited the positive inpacts
hat cheri es have on fisheries and conmunities, and that this bil

“sinply allows hatcheries to do good business” by offering themthe
opportunity to refinance at rates lower than the current nine
percent. He stated that enabling hatcheries to remain strong and
heal thy would result in a positive inpact on the general fund from

SFC- 02 (4) 03/ 01/ 02



i ncreased revenue generated from State taxes on commercial fish
har vesti ng.

CARL ROSI ER, President of the Al aska Qutdoor Council, testified in
support of the bill. He stressed the positive inpact hatcheries
have on recreational fishernmen, and stated refinancing of
hatcheries is “good business for the State of Al aska.”

AT EASE 9:43 AM/ 9:57AM

Senator Ward nmade a notion to nove SB 266 (RES) 22-LS1216\T from
Conmittee with acconpanying zero fiscal note fromthe Departnent of
Communi ty and Econom ¢ Devel opnent.

There were no objections, and the bill MOVED from Committee.

#SB182

SENATE BI LL NO. 182

"An Act requiring reductions in paynents to individuals under
certain benefit prograns if appropriations are not sufficient
to fully fund the statutorily established | evels of paynents.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Conmittee.

PAM KARALUNAS, Arctic Alliance for People, and The Resource Center
for Parents and Children, testified via teleconference from

Fai rbanks and stated this bill “is one of the |east effective ways”
to bal ance the budget because “it puni shes peopl e who are poor and
di sabled.” She asked the Commttee to consider how program

reci pients would pay expenses if paynents were reduced.

Co-Chair Kelly clarified this bill is not an elimnation of
benefits, but a pro ration of funds if deened necessary.

LYNNE KORAL, Al aska Independent Blind, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage that decreases in benefits to the poor woul d reduce
noni es to buy groceries and pay rent. She stressed this would have
a negative effect on those who could |east afford it. She appl auded
the Legislature’'s efforts to balance the budget, but stated this
bill would not have the intended affect.

TABER REHBAUM nenber, Arctic Alliance for People, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks that Artic Alliance renains

SFC- 02 (5) 03/ 01/ 02



“unequi vocal |y opposed” to this bill. She stated this |egislation
woul d pl ace the burden of bal ancing the budget onto the backs of
the “nobst venerable Al askans: the poor, the elderly and the
disabled,” and mght force nore Alaskans to seek welfare
assi stance. She asked the Conmmttee to seek ways to increase
revenue.

LAEL VENTA, President, People First, testified via tel econference
from Anchorage to concur with prior testifiers that this bill would
cause “a hardship on people who are already living at the poverty
| evel .”

JEANNETTE GRASTO, Board of Directors of the National Al liance for

the Mentally 11l (NAM) Fairbanks, NAM Al aska and Famly Center
Services of Alaska, testified via teleconference from Fairbanks
stating she “vehenently opposes this bill.” She asserted that “no

one chooses to have a disability or to have a child wth a
disability, and it can be a devastating experience.” She urged the
Committee to consider the negative effects this bill would have.

CATHERI NE  BURGESS, enpl oyee, Parents I nc. testified via
tel econference from Anchorage to “strongly oppose” this bill

COLLEEN AKPI K- LEMAN, Soci al Services Director, Barrow Arctic Sl ope
Native Association, testified via teleconference from Barrow in
opposition to this legislation, as it would negatively affect
benefits to people who live in the North Slope region, an area with
a high cost of living.

Co-Chair Kelly reiterated this bill “is not a bl anket reduction,”
but rather would allow the Legislature to address short-funding “on
a case by case basis.”

ALI SON ELCGEE, Deputy Conmmi ssioner, Departnent of Adm nistration,
testified that the Departnment of Admnistration has determned this
bill would affect its Longevity Bonus program recipients. She
stated it would subject these individuals “to a feeling of
uncertainty” that would be further conplicated when the Departnent
tried to project if and when benefits mght be pro-rated. She
informed the Conmttee the expenses of this program have been very
difficult to project, even though the program has its recipients
i dentified.

Ms. Elgee detailed that the Departnment’s projection forrmula for "a
hi gh case, m d-case and | owcase” nodel of needs fromwhich a full-
fundi ng- needs  budget reconmendation is presented to the
Legi sl ature. She stressed that over the course of the year, these
projections are recalculated, “and it is frequently the case” that

SFC- 02 (6) 03/ 01/ 02



in Septenber, “it appears the programw || be short-funded due to
participants’ travel patterns” and other factors. She continued
that the program nunbers are recal cul ated again in March, and the
program has “plenty of noney.” She stated the way this bill is
witten, according to the Septenber nunbers, the paynents would
have to be pro-rated, “where in fact,” there is adequate noney when
the nunbers are re-run in March

ELVMER LI NDSTROM Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services, stated this bill appears to affect a nunber of
prograns in the Departnment of Health and Social Services including
the Al aska Tenporary Assistance Program for Famlies (ATAF) and
children. He stated pro-rating this program would |eopardize
federal Block G ant funding that is a crucial part of the tota
program s fundi ng.

Co-Chair Donley stated a change in federal |aw m ght address the
requirenents for state funding.

M. Lindstromstated that is possible, although the Departnent is
not aware of any pertinent |egislation pending at the federal
| evel .

M. Lindstrominfornmed this bill would also affect the Adult Public
Assi stance (APA) Program for “the aged, blind, and disabled.”

SFC 02 # 23, Side B 10:15 AM

M. Lindstromprofiled the approxi mately 14,000 APA recipients as
foll ows: approximately 33 percent suffer from nental disorders;
approximately 15 percent have devel opnent al disabilities;
approximately 11 percent have nuscul ar/skel etal system probl ens;
and approximately four percent participate in the program as a
result of injury. He stated that APA benefits, conbined wth
Suppl enmental Security Inconme benefits, do not allow these people
“to live extravagantly,” and in fact, often do not “even cover room
and board.” He stated that after paying rent, food, utilities and
basic living needs, the discretionary income remaining for a
typi cal APA recipient is approximtely $125.

M. Lindstrom comrented this legislation would also affect the
Department’s General Relief Assistance Program He infornmed the
Comm ttee that approximately 75 percent of this program s funding
pays for indigent burials wth the balance providing sone
assistance to persons who are not eligible for other assistance
prograns; “typically for rent costs to keep people from being

SFC- 02 (7) 03/ 01/ 02



evicted” fromtheir hones.

M. Lindstrom informed the Committee the Foster Care Paynent
Program m ght al so be affected by this bill. He stated this program
is the key to the child protection system and the retention and
recruiting of foster parents. He stated the Departnent’s fisca

notes explain the scenario for each program depending on the
fundi ng reducti on percentage.

Senator Green asked if the recipients for these prograns are
identified by the state, the federal governnent, or both?

M. Lindstromresponded the primarily federally funded ATAF program
has both federal and state requirenents; whereas, the APA program
is a state regulated program He stated the Legislature could
address “eligibility and needs standards” changes to both these
prograns through statute.

Senator Green asked if the state has requested waivers fromthe
federal government for prograns “that are very costly” and “coul d
restrict covering a wider base of people.” She also inquired if the
Department had addressed with the Legislature, “nbderating
progranms” that are expensive to operate or have “expanded too
wi de.”

Ms. El gee responded that the Legislature is currently considering
HB 162 that could reduce the cost of the Longevity Bonus Program

Co-Chair Donley stated that 27 states do not have an APA program
and asked if the Departnent has any information on those states.

M. Lindstrom responded that the APA program is the State of
Al aska’ s supplenent to the federal Supplenental Security |Incone. He
noted that while not all states provide suppl enents, of those that
do, there is a “broad range” of paynents based on a nultitude of
ci rcunst ances such as assisted living or independent I|iving.

Co-Chair Donley communicated that 22 states do not provide
suppl enental coverage for individuals who live independently, and
Al aska pays approximately three tines the average suppl enment of the
states that do. He continued that 27 states have no program for
i ndividuals living in another household, and Al aska, in this case,
pays approximately three tines the average of those states that do.

M. Lindstrom thanked Co-Chair Donley for the information and
reiterated that an individual living alone in Al aska, after paying
for basic living needs, would have approxinmately $100 renai ni ng
i ncone.

SFC- 02 (8) 03/ 01/ 02



Co-Chair Donley commented that this would not be their sole source
of income as they receive a Permanent Fund Di vi dend.

M. Lindstrom suggested having these individuals testify before the
Comm ttee about what it is |like to Iive on public assistance.

PAUL CGROSSI, Director, Division of Wrker’s Conpensation

Department of Labor and W rkforce Developnent, inforned the
Comm ttee about the inpact this bill mght have on two prograns
adm ni stered by the Departnment: the Fisherman’s Fund, which pays
for emergency nedical benefits to fisherman who have no ot her
coverage for work related injuries or illnesses; and the Second
Injury Fund which pays benefits to enployers for paynents of
benefits for certain types of “long-term second degree injuries.”
He stated, “these are constitutionally dedicated funds” that m ght
have to be reduced wunder HB 182 if there is not enough
appropriations in a given year.

Senator G een asked how short funding of these prograns is
currently handl ed.

M. Gossi stated the Departnent requests supplenmental funding.

Co- Chair Donl ey nmentioned he has not noticed dedi cated funding for
t hese prograns in prior |egislation.

M. Gossi noted the om ssion m ght have been an oversight by the
Depart nment .

MARI E DARLIN, representing the Anerican Association of Retired
Persons, referenced a letter submtted by the Association, stating
its opposition to this bill. She nentioned that if benefits are cut
to seniors, many of them could not remain in their own hone, and
the state would subsequently pay for them to live in assisted
living facilities.

LIN CRAIG nenber, Key Coalition for the Blind, voiced concern that
this bill would affect people living at or bel ow poverty |evel. He
stated this bill could ultimately result in higher costs to the
state if people have to nove into assisted living facilities.

PHYLLI S HART, nenber, Parents, Inc. testified via tel econference
from Anchorage that she is famliar with services the State offers
to famlies as she has an autistic grandchild and a grandchild
adopted through the state foster program She voiced opposition to
the bill and stated, “there are nore effective ways to cone up with
funding for these prograns.”

SFC- 02 (9) 03/ 01/ 02



ALFRED MCKI NLEY SR, Executive Conmittee Menber, Grand Canp Al aska
Nati ve Brotherhood, and Del egate to Central Council, testified in
opposition to SB 182 and the reductions it may present. He voiced

this bill would be detrinmental to people and to the state,
explaining if people housed in state-assisted |iving prograns
recei ve reduced cash benefits, their rent paynent to the state
“Wll go down too.” He requested the Committee recognize the high

cost of living in Al aska, and that the cost of living in Anchorage
and Juneau is |lower than in rural conmunities.

FRANK C WHI TE SR, Al aska Native Brotherhood, Canp #2 testified
there are many handi capped people, such as hinself, who would be
af fected by any decrease in assistance, as many are at or near the
poverty l|level already. He stated he worked all his life to be
i ndependent, and that he still |ives independently, but is afraid
this bill mght force him a handicapped, retired veteran, and
people like him to nove out of their homes. He urged the Commttee
to |l eave prograns at current funding | evels.

AT EASE 10:51 AM/ 10: 52 AM

Co-Chair Donley stated the commttee substitute for SB 182
clarifies how the pro ration would function: the Executive Branch
woul d have the discretion to reduce paynents, if necessary, based
on the budget, or to plan for subsequent appropriations as
specified in Section 1, subsection (1) of the bill. He continued
that Section 1, subsection (2), mandates pro ration if the
Legislature “specifically instructs the Executive Branch to do so.”

Co-Chair Donley nmade a notion to adopt SB 182 (FIN), 22-LS0675\J as
a working draft.

There were no objections, and the commttee substitute was ADOPTED.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that, contrary to public testinony
coments, SB 182 does not reduce paynents: “it provides for a
budgeti ng nechanism whereby paynments could be reduced” and
“paynents would only be reduced if they were short-funded in the
actual budgeting docunent.”

Co-Chair Kelly stated it also does not preclude a suppl enenta
request .

The bill was HELD in Committee.
#

ADJ CQURNIVENT

SFC- 02 (10) 03/01/02



Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 10:57 AM

SFC- 02 (11) 03/01/02



